
ADDENDUM #3  
RFP 012019 CREDIT CARD PROCESSING 

1. Is the county looking for a similar fee structure that is in place today for the various 
departments taking payments? 

The County is requesting the best possible fees based on the total amount of dollars 
brought in by all applicable Departments in the County. 

2. Is the county interested in an IVR system?  

No. 

3. Is the county currently leasing Point of Sale equipment?  Or, were they purchased? Or 
are they provided for free?   

Leasing. 

4. Is the county looking for next day funding of all payments?  Convenience fee and agency 
funded payments.  

Yes. 

5. Can the county provide an estimated "Go Live" date for this project if a new service 
provider is chosen?  

The estimated go-live date will be during the first quarter of 2020; however, this date is 
subject to change. 

6. Are there any negative issues with the current service providers?  

We are not using just one service provider. The goal is to provide a solution to 
Departments that use the same credit card processing company. 

7. Is the acceptance of Interlink, and Bridge cards a requirement?  

Yes, Bridgecards are required. 

8. Can the county provide an average ticket amount for each department?  If not, can the 
county provide the number of transactions for each department?  

Courts: Average ticket amount is $150; however may be as low as $5 or to a high of 
$3,000. 

Treasurer: Average 845 transactions for a total of $601,265.47 



9. Is the county currently accepting electronic checks for any payment types?  

No 

10. Can the county provide a cost sheet in it's preferred format?  Or are providers to create 
their own?  

Providers shall provide their own cost sheet. 

11. Describe your expectation of vendor implementation:  

 The current vendor implementation is bi-directional. In the instance of District Court, 
the vendor queries the AS400 system for fees, sends the transaction to First Data and 
then updates the AS400 software, JMS with the applicable information. 

12. Will you confirm that you will require your current vendor to work with MSB for 
implementation?  

It is the County’s expectation that the vendors will work to ensure a smooth transition. 

13. Which of the interfaces that you currently use, and the new accounts being setup will 
require EMV chip processing?  

Most places have EMV chip processing today, there should not be an issue making this a 
requirement. 

14. AS400 is an IBM mainframe OS (Operating System). What software are you using on the 
AS400 to run the credit cards?  

The vendor, JMS queries the AS400 system to get fees for a citizen. It was built and 
maintained by JMS. 

15. In regard to Judicial Management System (JMS), please explain who or what 
software/gateway you use for the integrated card processing on this system 
currently.  No public information seems to be provided.  

Global Gateway via FirstData 

16. In regard to “Computer Systems, Inc” (CSI), please explain who or what 
software/gateway you use for the integrated card processing on this system 
currently.  No public information seems to be provided. 

 TSYS is currently used. 
 
 
 



17. You referenced that you use “Global Gateway”?  Is this a reference to the payment 
gateway service from Global Payments, or to a different payment gateway?  Please 
elaborate what is and who owns the Global Gateway so we can identify compatibility.    
 
Through Independent Bank and FirstData 

 
18. What mandatory fields do you require for online processing of credit cards? 

• Cardholder name 
• Card Type 
• Last four (4) digits of the card number 
• Expiration Date 
• Transaction amount 
• Transaction date and time 
• For Courts – Court file number 
• For Treasurer – Tax ID 

 
19. Of the three (3) “interested” departments listed on page 2 of the RFP, which 

departments plan to absorb the processing fees or pass the fees to the payer? 
 
The only Departments that will absorb the fees are the Courts. 

 
20. Since the issue of this RFP, have the departments marked as “Unknown at this time” in 

Exhibit 3 determined how many point of sale (POS) terminals are desired for each 
department? 
 
DOA has requested one (1). 
Treasurer possibly two (2) cost dependent. 
District Court three (3) terminals. 
Others still unknown at this time. 

 
21. Which departments are planning to implement web (online) payments; and will each 

department require separately branded websites or will web payment websites be 
shared between two or more departments?  
 
The accounts will need to be separate as of now the Treasurer and Courts will utilize 
web (online) payments. 

 
22. Can the County clarify the type of interface (e.g. web services look-up with payment 

update, web form post with/post back, batch file update, hosted payment data) desired 
for each of the four (4) systems listed in the RFP?  And which of these systems are 
hosted locally vs. hosted by vendor or cloud based.   
 
Vendor software is hosted locally. JMS and CSI both have systems located at Bay County. 



 
23. Are there any additional interfaces required beyond those listed on page 3 of the RFP? 

 
Not at this time. 

 
24. Can the County augment the information in Exhibit 1 to include total transactions for 

the same period of the revenues listed within the table? 
 
The Treasurer has a total of 845 transactions for that time period, others have not 
reported. 

 
25. Please provide an estimated project start and go-live date expectations.  

 
First Quarter 2020 

 
26. Will the County be designating a centralized project manager/coordinator or will the 

selected vendor be working with a project manager for each department? 
 
A mixture of both.  Information Systems will be the primary point of contact and each 
department will have a subject matter expert to ensure the needs of the department. 

 
27. Does the County have any ratio projections of how total payment transactions will be 

split between online web payments and toll-free call center payments?  
 
The Courts estimate approximately 60% in person/call center and 40% internet 
payments.  Other are unknown at this time. 

 
28. Can the County provide an annual estimate of annual chargeback payment amount and 

transaction totals? 
 
The Courts – 1 per year an average of $100; others unknown at this time. 

 
29. Can the County share the questions and answers submitted by other potential bidders 

of this RFP? 
 
Yes, there will be an addendum sent directly to all known vendors and placed on the 
County and MITN web sites. 

 
30. Could you share with us where you currently accept PIN Debit Transactions across the 

county? What was the dollar volume PIN Debit Transactions?  
 
 Pin Debit Transactions are not applicable 
 
 



31. Could you share with us where you currently accept EBT/Bridge Cards across the 
county? What was the dollar volume PIN Debit Transactions?  

 
 Bridge Cards would be a new service for the County and as such we do not have data. 
 

32. Could you share with us your annual American Express Processing Volume?  
 
 Information not available. 
 

33. Please clarify the statement “Vendor MUST interface with the current systems”. What 
do you mean by “interface”? Can you please provide a more detailed description of your 
requirements?   

 
An Application Programming Interface (API) would need to be made available for JMS 
and CSI for credit card processing.  
 
Payments would need to pass through to the AS400 via JMS and post to the client 
accounts automatically. 
 

34. Please clarify “Vendor services must not be sub-contracted”. Our online portal software 
is provided by a third party vendor (this was formerly owned by us), however, all 
customer service issues are handled solely by our employees. Would this be acceptable?  

 
 The County would need additional information to adequately respond, please include in 
 the bid submittal. 
 

35. Our Electronic Bill Pay solution provides receipts are provided electronically. Please 
provide further details on what this statement means, “Some departments may request 
two part paper while others will request the ability to print a second receipt when 
needed”. Would this be when the customer is paying in person?  

 
 This would be for in person payments, the Courts currently use one-part paper and will 
 need the ability to print an additional copy if required; it is unknown regarding the 
 departments contracting this service for the first time. 
 

36. We will need further clarification on this requirement: “Currently the payments made 
on the internet pass through the court software vendor and are automatically applied to 
the case file. No clerk action is required to post those payments. This would need to 
continue”.  

a. Would you be looking for an Automated Programing Interface (“API”) solution, 
where your customers can make payments and view bills on your online bill 
payment system, with our service as the back-end payment processor?  



b. Or are you looking to use Secure Handoff, where you collect remittance 
information and then re-direct the end user to your branded online payment 
portal screen for final payment processing?  

c. Or are you looking for your customers to use our online portal’s Electronic Bill 
Payment and Presentment (“EBPP”) solution, where they either login directly to 
the online portal or are redirected to the site via a single sign-on link with your 
system?  
 
An Application Programming Interface would need to be made available for JMS 
and CSI for credit card processing.  

 
37. Can you provide a listing of what each department processing needs are? ie. District 

Court- online and POS terminal, Treasurer’s Office – Online and POS terminal, etc.  
 
 The County’s known requirements have been listed in the RFP and will be open to 
 evaluation of the best methods per department. 

 
38. Who is the court’s software vendor(s)?  

 
Judicial Management System (JMS) 

 
39. Would the RFP allow the county to establish a depository relationship with the winning 

bidder for the purpose of settling the merchant deposits?  
 
 Possibly, please include in the submission response. 
 

40. Fiserv does not have the ability to integrate with Munis Software.  Do you know if Munis 
would allow other processers to process on their software? 

Munis only integrates with two companies: Open Edge and Bridgepay. 
 

41. How are you currently processing with the Munis? 

Currently the process is manually completed with spreadsheets and cash receipting. 
They are two separate systems. MUNIS and the point-of-sale system that the 
Department uses. 

 
42. Under Organizational Requirements on page 3,requirement 8 states the Vendor must 

interface with the current systems: 
 

a. Tyler Munis (Countywide financial system). 
b. AS400 (Courts program allowing defendants to access accounts and balances 

online). 
c. Judicial Management System (JMS) used by Courts. 
d. Computer Systems, Inc. (CSI) used by Register of Deeds. 



 
Can the City identify which specific departments and the software solution names that 
are being utilized?  

 
The County has various Departments that use both MUNIS – the financial system as well 
as other applications. 
 
AS400 is utilized by the Clerk and Court Departments. Currently the Court and Clerk 
office accept cash or check in person. The citizen would be paying at the counter.  

 
JMS is used by various Court Departments to collect fees 
 
CSI is used by the Register of Deeds 

 
43. On page 6 under item 8. Equipment, the City identifies the District Court as using Clover 

Mini Version 1.0 & the Global Gateway and The Friend of the Court uses GovPay. Are 
these gateways referenced used to process payments for any of the requested solutions 
(Tyler Munis, AS400, JMS CSI)? If so, can you identify which is used for each?  
 
JMS uses Global Gateway. There are no credit card direct to Tyler MUNIS or the AS400.  

 
44. Can the City identify which software solutions the Bay County Treasurer, the Bay County 

Department on Aging, The Bay County Clerk and Bay County Animal Services are using? 
 
This RFP is for the County. 
The Bay County Treasurer currently uses Lexis Nexis. 
Department on Aging and Animal Services currently do not accept credit cards. 
Probate Court uses GovPay. 

 
 


